
 

DESERT WATER AGENCY    BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
FEBRUARY 7, 2017                                                               REGULAR MEETING AGENDA                                            

 
REGULAR MEETING   8:00 A.M.   OPERATIONS CENTER - 1200 SOUTH GENE AUTRY TRAIL  – PALM SPRINGS – CALIFORNIA 

About Desert Water Agency: 
Desert Water Agency operates independently of any other local government.  Its autonomous elected board members are directly accountable to the people they serve. The Agency is one of the desert’s 
two State Water Contractors and provides water and resource management, including recycling, for a 325-square-mile area of Western Riverside County, encompassing parts of Cathedral City, Desert 
Hot Springs, outlying Riverside County and Palm Springs. 

1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE    
 
2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES –  A. January 6, 2017 (Special)  CIOFFI  

   B. January 17, 2017  
   C. January 24, 2017 (Special)                      
                                 

3. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT   KRAUSE 
 

4. COMMITTEE REPORTS –    A. Executive  – February 1, 2017  CIOFFI                        
  

5. PUBLIC INPUT:  
Members of the public may comment on any item not listed on the agenda, but within the jurisdiction of the Agency.  In addition, members of the public 
may speak on any item listed on the agenda as that item comes up for consideration.  Speakers are requested to keep their comments to no more than 
three (3) minutes.  As provided in the Brown Act, the Board is prohibited from acting on items not listed on the agenda.                                                            

  
6. ITEMS FOR ACTION 

A. Request Adoption of Resolution No. 1148 Granting Retirement Status to Lee Lahtinen  KRAUSE 
B. Water Use Violation - Civil Penalty Hearing (s)  METZGER 
C. Request Adoption of Resolution No. 1149 Concurring in Nomination of Kathleen J. Tiegs  KRAUSE 
 on ACWA/JPIA Executive Committee 
D. Request Authorization for General Manager to enter into MOU with Western  METZGER 

  Municipal Water District to Participate in the FreeSprinklerNozzles.com Program  
 E. Request Authorization to Enter into an Agreement with MWD & CVWD for Article 21 Water KRAUSE 
 F. Approve Proposed Second Amendment to General Manager’s Employment Agreement  

 
7. ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION 

A. Conservation Program Update (PPT)  METZGER 
B. State Water Contractors’ Meeting – January 19, 2017   RIDDELL 

    
8. OUTREACH & CONSERVATION  METZGER 
 A. Media Information 
 B. Activities 
 
9. DIRECTORS COMMENTS AND REQUESTS 
 
10. CLOSED SESSION 
 

A. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
 Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1) 
 Name of Case: Agua Caliente Band of Cahuilla Indians vs. Coachella Valley Water District, et al 
 
B. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 

  Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1) 
  Name of Case: Agua Caliente Band of Cahuilla Indians vs. County of Riverside, et al 
 

C. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
 Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1) 

  Name of Case: Desert Water Agency vs. U.S. Department of Interior 
 
 
 



 
DWA Board Agenda 
February 7, 2017 
Page 2 
 
 

D. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION   
  Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1) 
  Name of Case: Mission Springs Water District vs. Desert Water Agency 
 

E. CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS 
  Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.8 
  Property: 1.17 acre lot North of the Northeast corner of Sunrise Way and Mesquite Avenue,  
  APN No. 502-560-038 
  Agency Negotiators: Mark S. Krause, General Manager and Steven L. Johnson, Asst. General Manager 
  Negotiating Parties: Chris Thomsen, New Mesquite HOA 
  Under Negotiation: Price and terms of possible acquisition 
 

F. CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS     
  Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.8 
  Property: 0.504 acre west of Indian Canyon Drive between Racquet Club Rd. and Via Olivera 
  APN No. 504-260-026 and portions of APN No. 504-260-025 and 504-260-027 
  Agency Negotiators: Mark S. Krause, General Manager and Steven L. Johnson, Asst. General Manager 
  Negotiating Parties: Ayres Advisors 
  Under Negotiation: Price and terms 
  

G. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION 
  Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957  
  Title: General Manager 

    
11. RECONVENE INTO OPEN SESSION – REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION 

 
12. ADJOURN 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Upon request, this agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with disabilities, as required by Section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.  Any person 
with a disability who requires a modification or accommodation in order to participate in a meeting is asked to contact Desert Water Agency’s Executive Secretary, at (760) 323-4971, at least 48 working 
hours prior to the meeting to enable the Agency to make reasonable arrangements.  Copies of records provided to Board members which relate to any agenda item to be discussed in open session may 
be obtained from the Agency at the address indicated on the agenda. 



8749 

Desert Water Agency Special Board Meeting Minutes 01/06/17 

 

   MINUTES    2-A 
OF THE SPECIAL MEETING 

OF THE 
DESERT WATER AGENCY 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

January 6, 2017 
 

DWA Board: James Cioffi, President  ) 
 Joseph K. Stuart, Vice President   )         
 Kristin Bloomer, Secretary-Treasurer ) 
 Craig A. Ewing, Director ) 
 
Absent: Patricia G. Oygar, Director ) 
   
DWA Staff: Mark S. Krause, General Manager ) 
 Steve Johnson, Asst. General Manager ) 
 Martin S. Krieger, Finance Director ) 
 Ashley Metzger, Outreach & Conserv. Mgr. ) 
       
Consultant: Kris Polly, Water Strategies, LLC ) 
 Caroline Polly, Water Strategies, LLC, Intern ) 
  

Attendance 

17684.  President Cioffi opened the meeting at 9:00 a.m. and asked 
everyone to join him in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
17685.  Mr. Polly, the Agency’s Federal Lobbyist with Water 
Strategies, LLC introduced his daughter Caroline who currently interns 
with his firm. 
 
17686.  President Cioffi opened the meeting for public input. 
   
  There being no one from the public wishing to address the 
Board, President Cioffi closed the public comment period. 
 
17687.  President Cioffi stated due to the upcoming changes in the 
federal legislature, he requested Mr. Polly provide an update for the Board. 
   
  Mr. Polly discussed the following: Changes in Congress, 
Water Resources Development Act, Regulatory Reform, Tax exemption for 
water conservation rebates, and his 2017 Work Plan components. 
 
 
 
 
 

Pledge of Allegiance 
 
 
 
Introductions 
 
 
 
 
 
Public Input 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Discussion Item: 
Federal Legislative 
Issues 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8750 

Desert Water Agency Special Board Meeting Minutes 01/06/17 

 
17688.  At 9:15 a.m., President Cioffi convened into Closed Session 
for the purpose of (A) Existing Litigation, pursuant to Government Code 
Section 54956.9 (d) (1), Agua Caliente Band of Cahuilla Indians vs. 
Coachella Valley Water District, et al; (B) Existing Litigation, pursuant to 
Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1), ACBCI vs. County of Riverside, 
et al; and (C) Existing Litigation, pursuant to Government Code Section 
54956.9 (d) (1), Desert Water Agency vs. U.S. Department of Interior. 
 
  Agency Counsel Riddell participated in Closed Session via 
teleconference. 
 
17689.  At 9:58 a.m., President Cioffi reconvened the meeting into 
open session and announced there was no reportable action taken. 
 
17690.  In the absence of any further business, President Cioffi 
adjourned the meeting at 10:00 a.m. 
 
 
  

                                         ____________________________________ 
                                         James Cioffi, President                                  

 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
Kristin Bloomer, Secretary-Treasurer 

Closed Session: 
A. Existing Litigation – 
ACBCI vs. CVWD, et 
al.  
B. Existing Litigation – 
ACBCI vs. Riverside 
County 
C. Existing Litigation – 
DWA vs. U.S. Dept. of 
Interior 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Reconvene – No 
Reportable Action 
 
 
Adjournment 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  



8751 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 01/17/17 

 

   MINUTES   2-B
  

OF THE REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE 

DESERT WATER AGENCY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
January 17, 2017 

 
DWA Board: James Cioffi, President  ) 
 Joseph K. Stuart, Vice President   )         
 Kristin Bloomer, Secretary-Treasurer ) 
 Patricia G. Oygar, Director ) 
  Craig A. Ewing, Director ) 
   
DWA Staff: Mark S. Krause, General Manager ) 
 Steve Johnson, Asst. General Manager ) 
 Martin S. Krieger, Finance Director ) 
 Sylvia Baca, Asst. Secretary of the Board ) 
 Ashley Metzger, Outreach & Conserv. Mgr. ) 
 Irene Gaudinez, Human Resources Manager ) 
 Eddie Gonzalez, Facilities & Safety Officer ) 
      
Consultant: Michael T. Riddell, Best Best & Krieger ) 
  
Public: David Freedman, P.S. Sustainability Comm. ) 
     

Attendance 

17691.  President Cioffi opened the meeting at 8:00 a.m. and asked 
everyone to join Director Ewing in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
  
17692.  President Cioffi called for approval of the December 6, 2016 
Regular Board meeting minutes. 
 
  Director Ewing moved for approval. After a second by Vice 
President Stuart, the minutes were approved as written (Secretary-Treasurer 
Bloomer abstained due to her absence). 
 
  President Cioffi called for approval of the December 15, 2016 
Special Board meeting minutes. 
 
  Director Ewing requested an amendment to these minutes, to 
add the meeting location. 
 
  Vice President Stuart made a motion to approve the minutes 
noting Director Ewing’s amendment. After a second by Director Ewing, the 
minutes were approved with the amendment noted. 

Pledge of Allegiance 
 
 
 
Approval of 12/6/16 
Regular Board Mtg. 
Minutes 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Approval of 12/15/16 
Special Board Mtg. 
Minutes 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8752 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 01/17/17 

 
  President Cioffi called for approval of the December 20, 2016 
Regular Board meeting minutes. 
 
  Vice President Stuart noted a correction to section 17672; 
Vice President Stuart led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
  Director Ewing made a motion to approve the minutes noting 
Vice President Stuart’s correction. After a second by Vice President Stuart, 
the minutes were approved with the correction noted. 
 
17693.  President Cioffi called upon General Manager Krause to 
provide an update on Agency operations. 
 
  Mr. Krause stated on December 17 at approximately 2:30 
a.m., stand-by responded to a hit six-inch fire service at 68945 Perez Rd. 
Contact was made with the owner and authorization was received to make 
the necessary repairs by DWA. There was damage on the customer side that 
the customer will need to repair. The water loss was through a fully open 
six-inch pipe, which ran for approximately 30 minutes. A police report was 
filed.  
 
  Mr. Krause stated on December 30 at approximately 9:00 
p.m., stand-by responded to a hit fire hydrant on Saturnino Rd. and Calle 
Encilia. Staff was unable to put the fire hydrant back in service due to the 
bury needing to be replaced. Staff made repairs and chlorinated the fire 
hydrant. They also placed concrete for the sidewalk. This was not a drunk 
driver, it happened to be an Uber driver. A police report was made. The 
water loss was from a fully open six inch fire hydrant bury which ran for 
approximately thirty-five minutes. The hydrant was put back in service on 
January 6. 
 
  Continuing his report, Mr. Krause stated On January 12 at 
approximately 6:00 p.m. stand-by responded to a hit fire hydrant on Arenas 
Dr. and Saturmino Dr. (this was a hit and run). Staff was unable to access 
the fire hydrant valve and had to shut down the main line. They were able 
to reinstall the fire hydrant and put it back in service. A police report was 
filed. The water loss was for approximately one hour through a fully open 
six-inch fire hydrant bury. 
 
  Mr. Krause reported that pursuant to the SWP Contractors 
Notice Number 16-10, the 2017 Table A allocation was increased from 
20% to 45%, which equates to 87,345,000 acre-feet (assuming the 100,000 
acre-foot transfer is not called back (45,000 acre-feet). The 
DWA/CVWD/MWD exchange accounts balance is 87,088 acre-feet. If 
MWD kept all of the Agency’s Table A, this would essentially zero out the 
exchange account. Scheduled delivery of QSA water in 2017 is 35,000 
acre-feet. 
 

Approval of 12/20/16 
Regular Board Mtg. 
Minutes 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
General Manager’s 
Report 
 
 
 
Hit Fire Service 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Hit Fire Hydrant 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Hit Fire Hydrant 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2017 Imported Water 
Supply 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8753 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 01/17/17 

 
  Mr. Krause announced a Special Board meeting has been 
scheduled for January 24 at 2:00 p.m. to request approval of the Sites 
Reservoir Project (Phase 1) agreement. 
 
  Mr. Krause provided an SCE update for 2017; the average 
rate is estimated to increase 6%. He stated that SCE is re-assessing their 
current Time of Use (TOU) periods to determine the potential need to shift 
these periods for all customer classes to later in the day. 
        
  Concluding his report, Mr. Krause noted several meetings and 
activities he participated in during the past several weeks. 
 
17694.  President Cioffi noted the minutes for the December 29, 2016 
and January 11, 2017 Executive Committee were provided in the Board’s 
packet. 
 
  President Cioffi noted the minutes for the January 5, 2017 
Conservation and Public Affairs Committee were provided in the Board’s 
packet. 
     
17695.  President Cioffi opened the meeting for public input. 
 
  There being no one from the public wishing to address the 
Board, President Cioffi closed the public comment period. 
 
17696.  President Cioffi called upon Secretary-Treasurer Bloomer to 
provide an overview of financial activities for the month of December 
2016. 
 
  Secretary-Treasurer Bloomer reported that the Operating 
Fund received $1,997,342 in Water Sales Revenue. $109,665 was received 
in Reclamation Sales Revenue. Included in the Miscellaneous receipts is 
$11,000 from Mission Springs Water District (their portion of CV Water 
Counts program). $1,651,513 was paid out in Accounts Payable. Year-to-
date Water Sales are 14% over budget, Year-to-date Total Revenues are 
13% over budget, and Year-to-date Total Expenses are 16% under budget. 
There were 22,347 active services as of December 31, 2016, compared to 
22,337 as of November 30, 2016 and compared to 21,846 as of December 
31, 2013. 
 
  Reporting on the General Fund, Ms. Bloomer stated that 
$4,667,413 was received in Property Tax Revenue. $1,544,511 was paid out 
in State Water Project charges (YTD SWP payments: July–Dec = 
$8,951,919). 
 
  Reporting on the Wastewater Fund, Ms. Bloomer stated that 
$19,415 was received in Sewer Capacity Charges. There are a total of 68 
contracts (47 Cathedral City Cove and 21 Dream Homes) with 24 

General Manager’s 
Report 
(Cont.) 
01/24/17 Special Board 
Meeting 
 
SCE Update  
 
 
 
 
 
 
General Manager’s 
Meetings & Activities 
 
 
Committee Reports 
Executive 12/29/16 & 
01/11/17 
 
 
 
Conservation & Public 
Affairs 01/05/17 
 
 
 
 
Public Input 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Secretary-Treasurer’s 
Report (December 
2016) 
 
 
 
Operating Fund 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
General Fund 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Wastewater Fund 
 
 
 



8754 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 01/17/17 

 
delinquent (35%). $88,246 was paid out in Accounts Payable. 
 
17697.  President Cioffi called upon General Manager Krause to 
present the civil penalty hearings for water use violations. 
 
  Mr. Krause noted there have been more than 420 violations 
issued and that recipients have 7 days to request a hearing in writing. Staff 
has received two hearing requests for today. There are no appellants present 
for today’s hearing. 
    
  Mr. Krause announced the first appellant is Anita McKinney. 
He then presented information and noted the violation: 1) Irrigating during 
restricted hours. It was noted that runoff was evident from photos and was 
discussed with the customer over the phone. The fine is $50 and the reason 
for appeal is the customer was not aware of restrictions; she fixed the 
problem and other neighbors over water. 
 
  In response to Director Oygar, Ms. Metzger stated the 
appellant claims a neighbor helped fix the problem; there was no Agency 
staff follow up. 
 
  Director Oygar made a motion to uphold the appeal; violation 
occurred and waive the penalty. After a second by President Cioffi, the 
motion carried unanimously. 
 
  Mr. Krause stated the second appellant is K. Michael Exel. He 
presented information and noted the violations: 1) Irrigating during 
restricted hours, and 2) Runoff. The fine is $50 and the reasons for appeal; 
property is occupied 10-12 days per month, watering days will be corrected 
on January 18, watering is important for trees, and there is no runoff. 
 
  Director Ewing made a motion to uphold the appeal; violation 
occurred and waive the penalty. After a second by Director Oygar, the 
motion carried unanimously. 
 
17698.  President Cioffi asked General Manager Krause to present 
staff’s request for authorization for Board attendance at the Urban Water 
Institute Spring Water Conference.  
 
  Mr. Krause stated this year’s conference will be held on 
February 8-10, 2017 at the Hilton Palm Springs hotel. Staff recommends 
that the Board approve and authorize those Board Members who are 
interested in attending the conference in service to the Board. 
 
  Director Ewing made a motion to approve and authorize 
Board Members to attend the Urban Water Institute Spring Conference in 
service to the Board. Secretary-Treasurer Bloomer seconded the motion, 
which carried unanimously. 

Items for Action: 
 
 
Water Use Violation – 
Civil Penalty Hearings 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Anita McKinney 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Uphold 
Appeal/Violation 
Occurred/Waive 
Penalty 
 
 
 
K. Michael Exel 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Uphold 
Appeal/Violation 
Occurred/Waive 
Penalty 
 
 
Request 
Authorization/Board 
Attendance Urban 
Water Institute Spring 
Water Conference 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8755 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 01/17/17 

 
17699.  President Cioffi asked General Manager Krause to report on 
the December Water Production Comparison. 
 
  Mr. Krause reported that the Agency and its customers 
achieved a 14 percent reduction during December 2016 compared to 
December 2013. He noted the cumulative savings June 2015 through 
December 2016 is 24 percent. He also noted the amount of fresh water 
outflow to the ocean was 1,250,719.3-acre feet for December. 
 
17700.  Mr. Krause provided a PowerPoint presentation on the 
Agency’s 2016 Capital Improvement projects, which included: (1) Palm 
Springs East reservoir fence; (2) Hermosa Drive pipeline relocation; (3) 
Communications towers; (4) Janis-Tuscany booster surge tank; (5) Potable 
water reservoir maintenance; (6) Confined space rescue trailer; (7) Desert 
Palisades transmission main; (8) Zone 1240 Hydro pneumatic booster 
station; (9) Backup chopper pump and motor; (10) Wells 30, 32 & 36 
Chlorine pump; (11) Well 20 Electrical panel replacement; (12) Janis 
Booster pump electrical panel replacement; (13) Well 23 Electrical panel 
replacement; (14) Well 31 Electrical panel replacement; (15) Recycled 
water plant compressor; (16) Recycled water plant lab exhaust hood; (17) 
Unit 57; (18) Unit 47; (19) Unit 5; (20) Unit 3;  and (21) Unit 25, new 
traffic control arrow board. 
 
17701.  President Cioffi asked General Manager Krause to report on 
the Lake Perris Seismic Remediation Update. 
 
  Mr. Krause stated the update is the most recent. The 
highlights of the report are 81% of the work has been completed with 72% 
of the time elapsed. Recently completed work consists of the left abutment 
road and new toe drain. The contractor continues to work on the following: 
Processing and placement of compacting berm material, quarry excavation 
and rock processing; and placement and compacting of filter and drain 
material for blanket drain. 
   
17702.  President Cioffi asked Agency Counsel Riddell to provide a 
report on the December 15, 2016 meeting of the Board of Directors of the 
State Water Contractors, Inc. 
 
  Mr. Riddell provided a report on the following items: 1) 
Board Action Items, 2) Water Supply Report, 3) DWR Report on Draft 
Statewide Water Conservation Plan, 4) General Manager’s Report and 
Legislative Report, and 5) Report on Business Process Objectives. 
 
17703.  President Cioffi asked Outreach & Conservation Manager 
Metzger to provide an update on the Agency’s new website. 
 
  Mrs. Metzger stated the new website will go live today at 5:01 
p.m. She then provided a PowerPoint presentation showing the various new 

Discussion Items: 
December Water 
Production 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2016 Capital 
Improvement Projects 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Lake Perris Seismic 
Remediation Update 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
State Water Contractors 
Meeting – 12/15/16 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
DWA Website Update 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8756 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 01/17/17 

 
and updated pages. 
 
17704.  President Cioffi noted that Board packets included Outreach 
& Conservation reports for December 2016. 
 
  Mrs. Metzger stated the smart control program is being 
updated to include in store advertising/placement at: Home Depot, Lowes 
and Ewing Irrigation and Landscape Supply. 
 
  Director Ewing announced that neither he nor family 
members are associated with Ewing Irrigation and Landscape Supply. 
 
17705.  At 9:43 a.m., President Cioffi convened into Closed Session 
for the purpose of Conference with Legal Counsel, (A) Existing Litigation, 
pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1), Agua Caliente Band 
of Cahuilla Indians vs. Coachella Valley Water District, et al; (B) Existing 
Litigation, pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1), ACBCI 
vs. County of Riverside, et al; (C) Existing  Litigation, pursuant to 
Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1), Desert Water Agency vs. U.S. 
Department of Interior; (D) Existing Litigation, pursuant to Government 
Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1), Mission Springs Water District vs. Desert 
Water Agency;  and (E) Real Property Negotiators, pursuant to Government 
Code Section 54956.8, Property-APN 502-560-038, Agency Negotiators: 
Mark S. Krause, General Manager and Steve L. Johnson, Assistant General 
Manager, Negotiating Parties: Chris Thomsen, New Mesquite HOA, Under 
Negotiation: Price and terms of possible acquisition. 
 
17706.  At 11:30 a.m., President Cioffi reconvened the meeting into 
open session and announced there was no reportable action. 
   
17707.  In the absence of any further business, President Cioffi 
adjourned the meeting at 11:31 a.m. 
  
  

                                         ____________________________________ 
                                         James Cioffi, President                                  

 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
Kristin Bloomer, Secretary-Treasurer 

Discussion Items: 
(Cont.) 
 
Outreach & 
Conservation – 
December 2016 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Closed Session: 
A. Existing Litigation – 
ACBCI vs. CVWD, et 
al.  
B. Existing Litigation – 
ACBCI vs. Riverside 
County 
C. Existing Litigation – 
DWA vs. U.S. Dept. of 
Interior 
D. Existing Litigation – 
MSWD vs. DWA 
E. Real Property 
Negotiators  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Reconvene –
Reportable Action 
 
 
Adjournment 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  



8757 

Desert Water Agency Special Board Meeting Minutes 01/24/17 

 

   MINUTES    2-C 
OF THE SPECIAL MEETING 

OF THE 
DESERT WATER AGENCY 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

January 24, 2017 
 

DWA Board: James Cioffi, President  ) 
 Joseph K. Stuart, Vice President   )         
 Kristin Bloomer, Secretary-Treasurer ) 
 Craig A. Ewing, Director ) 
 
Absent: Patricia G. Oygar, Director ) 
   
DWA Staff: Mark S. Krause, General Manager ) 
 Steve Johnson, Asst. General Manager ) 
 Martin S. Krieger, Finance Director ) 
 Sylvia Baca, Asst. Secretary of the Board ) 
 Ashley Metzger, Outreach & Conserv. Mgr. ) 
       
Consultant: Michael T. Riddell, Best Best & Krieger ) 
 Jim Watson, Sites Project Authority G.M. ) 
 
  

Attendance 

17708.  President Cioffi opened the meeting at 2:00 p.m. and asked 
everyone to join Secretary-Treasurer Bloomer in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
17709.  President Cioffi opened the meeting for public input. 
   
  There being no one from the public wishing to address the 
Board, President Cioffi closed the public comment period. 
 
17710.  President Cioffi asked General Manager Krause to present 
staff’s request for approval of Phase 1 (Sites Reservoir Project) Funding 
Agreement. 
 
  Mr. Krause introduced Jim Watson, Sites Project Authority 
General Manager. Mr. Watson attended the recent ACWA conference and 
provided a presentation on this subject. Mr. Krause indicated that earlier 
this morning the CVWD Board of Directors approved this funding 
agreement. 
 
  Mr. Krause then presented a PowerPoint presentation, which 
provided a brief overview. He then asked Mr. Watson to continue the 
presentation. 

Pledge of Allegiance 
 
 
 
Public Input 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Action Item: 
Request Approval of 
Phase 1 (Sites Reservoir 
Project) Funding 
Agreement 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8758 

Desert Water Agency Special Board Meeting Minutes 01/24/17 

 
  Mr. Watson noted the reservoir location is in Maxwell, which 
is in California’s Central Valley, Colusa County. This reservoir is the 
seventh largest in California. 
 
  In response to President Cioffi, Mr. Watson stated a draft 
Environmental Impact Report should be ready by June. 
 
  Mr. Krause stated on July 28, 2016 the Agency submitted its 
executed Sites Reservoir Project, Phase 1 Proposal to Participate form. This 
certified that the Agency was eligible to participate, elected to participate 
and agreed to be a member in good standing of the Reservoir Project 
Agreement Committee. At the time of application, the Agency applied for 
6,500 acre-feet of Class 1 water at a not-to-exceed cost of $60/acre-feet for 
Phase 1 funding; no Class 2 was requested. No Class 2 water will be 
available if Proposition 1 funds 50% of the reservoir. However, if for 
example, funding were only 30%, there would be an additional 20% of the 
reservoir capacity available for potable water supply (100,000 acre-feet). 
Class 2 water is at a not-to-exceed cost of $30/acre-feet.  
 
  Continuing with his report, Mr. Krause explained the Agency 
submitted as part of the Proposal to Participate form, an exit clause stating 
if the Agency is unable to receive support from The Metropolitan Water 
District of Southern California (MWD) in activities to acquire additional 
water supply and to deliver said water in accordance with its current 
exchange agreement, the Agency will be able to exit out of the Sites 
agreement. Subsequently, MWD wrote a letter in support. 
 
  The estimated cost of work in Phase 1 is $15,134,507. The 
cost of Class 1 and Class 2 water has been determined to be $48.50 per 
acre-foot and $24.25 per acre-foot. The Agency’s total cost of Phase 1 
participation is $247,298.11. Staff requests authorization for the General 
Manager to execute the Sites Project Authority’s Amended and Restated 
Phase 1 Reservoir Project Agreement, dated November 21, 2016 and to 
provide funding for Phase 1 in the amount of $247,298.11. 
 
  Responding to Vice President Stuart, Mr. Krieger stated there 
is money in Reserves or this item can be placed in next year’s budget. 
 
  Director Ewing made a motion to authorize the General 
Manager to execute the Sites Project Authority’s Amended and Restated 
Phase 1 Reservoir Project Agreement dated November 21, 2016 and to 
provide funding for Phase 1 in the amount of $247,298.11. After a second 
by Vice President Stuart, the motion carried unanimously (Director Oygar 
absent). 
 
 
 
 

Action Item: 
(Cont.) 
Request Approval of 
Phase 1 (Sites Reservoir 
Project) Funding 
Agreement 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8759 

Desert Water Agency Special Board Meeting Minutes 01/24/17 

 
17711.  At 3:12 p.m., President Cioffi convened into Closed Session 
for the purpose of Conference with Legal Counsel, (A) Existing Litigation, 
pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1), Agua Caliente Band 
of Cahuilla Indians vs. Coachella Valley Water District, et al; (B) Existing 
Litigation, pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1), ACBCI 
vs. County of Riverside, et al; (C) Existing  Litigation, pursuant to 
Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1), Desert Water Agency vs. U.S. 
Department of Interior; (D) Existing Litigation, pursuant to Government 
Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1), Mission Springs Water District vs. Desert 
Water Agency; and (E) Real Property Negotiators, pursuant to Government 
Code Section 54956.8, Property-APN 502-560-038, Agency Negotiators: 
Mark S. Krause, General Manager and Steve L. Johnson, Assistant General 
Manager, Negotiating Parties: Chris Thomsen, New Mesquite HOA, Under 
Negotiation: Price and terms of possible acquisition.  
 
  At 3:50 p.m., President Cioffi left the meeting. 
 
17712.  At 4:04 p.m., Vice President Stuart reconvened the meeting 
into open session and announced there was no reportable action taken. 
 
17713.  In the absence of any further business, Vice President Stuart 
adjourned the meeting at 4:05 p.m. 
 
 
  

                                         ____________________________________ 
                                         James Cioffi, President                                  

 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
Kristin Bloomer, Secretary-Treasurer 

Closed Session: 
A. Existing Litigation – 
ACBCI vs. CVWD, et 
al.  
B. Existing Litigation – 
ACBCI vs. Riverside 
County 
C. Existing Litigation – 
DWA vs. U.S. Dept. of 
Interior 
D. Existing Litigation – 
MSWD vs. DWA 
E. Real Property 
Negotiators 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Reconvene – No 
Reportable Action 
 
 
Adjournment 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  



3 

Page 1 of 4 

 

 
GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 

FEBRUARY 7, 2017 
 
 

  
 
 
 

On January 30 at approximately 12:40 a.m., stand-by responded to a hit fire hydrant on Indian 
Canyon Drive north of Vista Chino. Staff replaced the hydrant and placed it back in service. A 
police report was filed. The water loss was from a fully open 6-inch fire hydrant bury which ran for 
approximately 30 minutes. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 2 of 4 

 

Water Delivery Update 
Whitewater Basin Water Deliveries: 
January 9th: 50 cfs 
January 10th: increase to 100 cfs 
January 11th: increase to 150 cfs 
January 12th: increase to 200 cfs 
January 16th: increased to 425 cfs 
January 20th: stopped deliveries due to heavy storm runoff 
January 25th: start at 50 cfs 
January 26th: increased to 100 cfs 
January 27th: increased to 150 cfs 
January 30th: increased to 200 cfs 
January 31st: increased to 255 cfs 
A scheduled increase will occur on February 2nd to 300 cfs. Plan to continue until CRA scheduled 
maintenance which is scheduled to begin February 14th, 2017. 
Water deliveries are scheduled off during maintenance which is scheduled to last 28 days. 
MWD would like to start deliveries in March, after maintenance, at 500 cfs for the reminder of the 
year, for a total delivery of 300,000 acre-feet. 
 
Whitewater Hydro was started on January 12th, and ran until the January 20th shut down. The 
hydro was started again on January 31st, and is scheduled to run until the maintenance shut 
down.  
The hydro produced 220,049 kw during the month of January. We anticipate earning 
approximately $20,000, to be shared with CVWD. 
If the hydro is operational from March through December, we anticipate producing approximately 
6,960 MW for 2017. This will generate approximately $640,000 in earnings from SCE.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 3 of 4 

 

Current SWC Official Correspondence: 
 

• SWC comments on the Delta Stewardship Councils development of the Delta Levee 
Investment Strategy 

o The DSC is making requirements rather than recommendations and thereby taking 
on a regulatory role rather than advisory.  Also encourages the DSC to look at the 
“beneficiary pays” definition provided by the CALFED Bay-Delta Program 
Implementation Plan – July 2000. 

(see attached letter) 

 
 
 

DWA Offices Closed 
DWA offices will be closed on Monday, February 20 for the President’s Day holiday. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 4 of 4 

 

General Manager’s Meetings and Activities 
 
Meetings: 
 
01/18/2017 SWC Operations Committee Sacramento 
01/18/2017 SWC Delta Committee Sacramento 
01/19/2017 SWC Monthly Board Meeting Sacramento 
01/20/2017 Sites Reservoir Committee Meeting  Sacramento 
01/23/2017 SGMA Meeting Indio Sub-basin Indio 
01/24/2017 DWA Special Board Meeting DWA 
01/25/2017 Meeting with Reeb Conf. Call 
01/25/2017 SWC Operations Committee Conf. Call 
01/27/2017 DWA Annual Awards Breakfast DWA 
02/01/2017 DWA Executive Committee Meeting DWA 
02/02/2017 DWA/CVWD/MWD Article 21 Water Meeting Conf. Call 

   
   
   
   

 
Activities: 
 

1) Sites Reservoir Agreement 
2) E-Billing – Completed and now tracking 
3) Outreach Talking Points – KMIR 
4) Snow Creek Hydro SCE contract extension - ongoing 
5) Whitewater Hydro – Developing new administration procedures 
6) State and Federal Contractors Water Authority and Delta Specific Project Committee 

(Standing) 
7) Property Acquisition - New Mesquite HOA – Ongoing 
8) MSWD Lawsuit – Ongoing 
9) ACBCI Section 14 Facilities & Easements 
10) CPV Agreement Amendment 
11) Chain of Title 
12) Budget Augmentation 
13) Replacement Pipelines 2016-2017 
14) DWA Power Costs 
15) DWA/CVWD/MWD Operations Coordination 
16) DWA/CVWD/MWD Agreements Update 
17) Recycled Water Effluent Reservoir Coating Failures 
18) SGMA Alternative Plans and Bridge Documents 
19) SWP 2017 Water Supply 
20) DWA Credit Card Payment Costs 
21) ACBCI Law Suits 
22) Lake Perris Dam Remediation 

 
 

 









6-A 
 

STAFF REPORT  
TO 

DESERT WATER AGENCY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
FEBRUARY 7, 2017 

 
 
 
RE: REQUEST ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION NO. 1148, GRANTING 

RETIREMENT STATUS TO LEE LAHTINEN WITH APPRECIATION 
  
Attached is a copy of Resolution No. 1148 officially granting retirement status to 
Controller, Lee Lahtinen. 
 
Mr. Lahtinen will be presented a copy of Resolution No. 1148 acknowledging his 
12 years of dedicated service and loyalty to Desert Water Agency. 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 1148 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
OF THE DESERT WATER AGENCY 

GRANTING RETIREMENT STATUS TO 
LEE LAHTINEN 

 
 WHEREAS, Lee Lahtinen, began his service with Desert Water Agency on February 1, 2005 as 
the Accounting Supervisor in the Accounting Department.  On February 1, 2010, he was promoted to the 
position of Controller; and is concluding his career in that capacity; and  
 
 WHEREAS, over his 12 year career with Desert Water Agency, Lee has always sought ways in 
which he could improve upon the Accounting systems and procedures; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Lee has provided great leadership to the Accounting and Customer Service 
Departments and shared his knowledge and experience and provided cross-training for his staff to prepare 
them for advancement within the department; and  
  
 WHEREAS, Lee has been responsible for the agency’s general ledgers, year-end audit, 
Whitewater Mutual Water Company acquisition, ACH and Check 21 programs, groundwater invoicing, 
wastewater sewer contract program, Mint Bills, Paymentus, i-Series upgrades, turf buy-back monitoring; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, Lee has consistently provided excellent customer service to the community and 
fellow employees; and 

 
 WHEREAS, the Desert Water Agency is deeply appreciative of this employee’s loyalty, honesty, 
integrity, competency and conscientious service in his duties, and his willingness to assist other 
departments, and  
 
 WHEREAS, Lee has served as an outstanding role model with respect to his work ethics and has 
consistently performed his duties meticulously and with commitment to the highest standards required in 
conjunction with the responsibilities he fulfilled, and has done so with the Agency’s best interest in mind;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Desert Water Agency Board of Directors that  
 

LEE LAHTINEN 
 
 is, with infinite thanks and appreciation for his 12 years of service to the Desert Water Agency, 
and our community, hereby granted the status of retirement.   It is the wish of the Board that Lee spends 
countless years enjoying a happy and healthy retirement, for he has earned it.  
 
 ADOPTED this 7th day of February, 2017, with retirement effective February 16, 2017. 

 
                                                   

 __________________________________ 
    James Cioffi, President 
    Board of Directors 
                         

ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
Kristin Bloomer, Secretary-Treasurer 
Board of Directors 



6-B 
 

STAFF REPORT 
TO 

DESERT WATER AGENCY  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
FEBRUARY 7, 2017 

 
RE: WATER USE VIOLATION – CIVIL PENALTY HEARINGS 
 
Starting in March, 2016, staff began issuing water use violations under the new 
ordinance; to date, more than 440 violations have been issued. Recipients of the 
violations have 7 days to request a hearing in writing. One violation will be reviewed at 
today’s board meeting. 

The following is a summary of the procedure for the hearings. 

Staff has provided the Board with the correspondence for each of the violations 
including photographic evidence. Photographs will also be projected during the hearing 
to provide the board and customer a common point of reference for discussion. 

Staff will introduce each violation with a summary of the event. After the introduction the 
customer will be invited by the Board to speak concerning the violation. If the recipient 
of the violation is not present or does not wish to speak, staff will read the violation 
summary and submit the written petition into the record for board action. 

Each petition will be discussed and voted on separately. 

As a point of reference, staff has notified Agency customers concerning water 
conservation regulations in several different ways: 

Initial Notifications Upon Restrictions Going into Effect 

1. Published the ordinance in The Public Record 
2. Published the ordinance in the Agency Website 
3. Social media outlets 
4. KMIR, KESQ, KPCC, the Joey English Show 
5. Desert Sun Valley Voice 
6. Palm Desert Patch 
7. Email to Palm Springs and Cathedral City Chambers 
8. Emails to HOA in our contact list 
9. Emails to high volume users 

 

 



Comprehensive Notifications – Since June 2015 

1. Direct mail to all customers 
2. Bill inserts 
3. Bill on envelope messaging 
4. Billboards 
5. Online advertising (KESQ) 
6. Television advertising (Time Warner) 
7. Social media 
8. Several public presentations on TV 
9. Print and radio Interviews 
10. DWA and CVWD websites 
11. Rates brochure given to all new customers 

 



1. Gordon Zentner, 2890 N De Anza Rd, Palm Springs 

 

a. On Monday, January 23 at 7:00 a.m. a Desert Water Agency 

representative observed water use violations at said address and reported 

them. 

i. Watering during the rain (had rained over the weekend as well) 

ii. Irrigating during restricted hours 

 

b. Fine amount $50 

i. Single-family home 

ii. First violation  

 

c. Reason for petition 

i. Customer aware of restrictions. Customer fixed timing of zones.  

 

d. Other information 

i. Customer does not have smart irrigation controller 

ii. Discussed controller program with customer. Customer agreed to 

apply. 

 





 
 
 
January 24, 2017 
 
Gordon Zentner                                                                          
2890 N De Anza Rd 
Palm Springs, CA 92262 
 

RE: FINE ON ACCOUNT# ; 2890 N De Anza 
 

Dear Valued Customer: 
 
Due to a water use violation observed and documented by a Desert Water Agency representative on 
Monday, January 23, 2017 at 7:00 am, you are being served with a complaint to impose a civil 
(monetary) penalty.  
 
You have 7 days to request, in writing, a hearing on this violation. If you do request a hearing, you will 
need to come to the Agency and present information that refutes the alleged violation. If you do not 
request a hearing within 7 days of this complaint, the civil penalty of $50.00 will be added onto your 
water bill.  
 

You were cited for: 
 

  Outdoor  irrigation shall be restricted to Mondays, Wednesdays,& Fridays,  before 7:00 a.m. 

and after 7:00 p.m. 

 

 Runoff such that water flows onto adjacent property, non-irrigated areas, private and public 

walkways, roadways, parking lots, or structures is prohibited. 

 

 Irrigating up to 48 hours after measurable rainfall is prohibited. 

 
This is a violation of Desert Water Agency’s Ordinance No. 65. For a first violation within any 12-
month period, the civil penalty shall be $100 for a multi-family residential, commercial or institutional 
establishment or $50 for a single-family residential customer. 
 
For a second violation within any 12-month period, the civil penalty shall be $200 for a multi-family 
residential, commercial or institutional establishment or $100 for a single-family residential customer. 
 
For a third and each subsequent violation within any 12-month period, the civil penalty shall be $500 for 
a multi-family residential, commercial or institutional establishment or $250 for a single-family 
residential customer.    
 



Failure to pay the civil penalty on your water bill may result in termination of water service. In addition, 
the Agency staff shall be authorized to discontinue water service for any violation of the Ordinance.  
 
If you have any additional questions, please contact us. 
 
Thank you, 
 
 
 
Ashley Metzger 
Outreach & Conservation Manager 
Desert Water Agency 
On behalf of General Manager Mark Krause 





Krause 020717 resosupporttiegsacwajpia  

6-C 
 
 
 
 

STAFF REPORT  
TO 

DESERT WATER AGENCY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
FEBRUARY 7, 2017 

 
 
 
RE: REQUEST ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION NO. 1149 SUPPORTING  
 THE NOMINATION OF KATHLEEN J. TIEGS TO THE OFFICE OF 

ACWA/JPIA EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 
 
 
Attached for the Board’s consideration is Resolution No. 1149, which supports  
the nomination of Kathleen J. Tiegs, Director of the Cucamonga Valley Water 
District and current President of ACWA Region 9, to the office of ACWA/JPIA 
Executive Committee.  Also attached is a copy Ms. Tieg’s bio.  
 
At the February 1, 2017 Executive Committee meeting, there was support of Ms. 
Tieg’s nomination. 
 
If the Board concurs in the nomination of Ms. Tiegs to the office of ACWA/JPIA 
Executive Committee, it may do so by adopting Resolution No. 1149. Following 
adoption, staff will forward a copy of the resolution to Cucamonga Valley Water 
District and ACWA/JPIA offices.  
 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO.  1149  
 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF  
DESERT WATER AGENCY 

CONCURRING IN NOMINATION OF KATHLEEN J. TIEGS 
TO THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF THE 

ASSOCIATION OF CALIFORNIA WATER AGENCIES 
JOINT POWERS INSURANCE AUTHORITY (ACWA JPIA) 

 
  WHEREAS, Desert Water Agency is a member of ACWA JPIA; and 
   
  WHEREAS, the Bylaws of the ACWA JPIA provide that in order for a 
nomination to be made to ACWA JPIA’s Executive Committee, three member districts must 
concur with the nominating district; and 
 
  WHEREAS, another ACWA JPIA member district, the Cucamonga Valley 
Water District has requested that DWA concur in its nomination of its member of the ACWA 
JPIA Board of Directors to the Executive Committee of the ACWA JPIA; 
 
  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the 
Desert Water Agency that this agency concurs with the nomination of Kathleen J. Tiegs of 
Cucamonga Valley Water District to the Executive Committee of ACWA JPIA. 
 
  BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Assistant Board Secretary is hereby 
requested to transmit a certified copy of this resolution to ACWA JPIA at P.O. Box 619082, 
Roseville, CA 95661-9082, forthwith. 
 
  ADOPTED this 7th day of February, 2017. 
  
        ______________________________ 
        James Cioffi, President 

Board of Directors 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Kristin Bloomer, Secretary-Treasurer 
Board of Directors 
 









6-D 

Page 1 of 2 
 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
TO 

DESERT WATER AGENCY  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
FEBRUARY 7, 2017 

 
 

RE: MOU WITH WESTERN MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT FOR 
FREESPRINKLERNOZZLES.COM PROGRAM 

 

Background 
To date, DWA has not offered a free sprinkler nozzle program.  
 
Efficient sprinkler heads can save customers up to 1,400 gallons per head per year and 
can reduce runoff due to wind or slopes (thanks to larger droplet sizes and lower flow). 
 
Program Overview 
The FreeSprinklerNozzles.com Program is a web-administered voucher program for 
free high efficiency sprinkler nozzles created and offered by Western Municipal Water 
District (Western). Customers can receive: 

- Up to 25 free nozzles for single-family customers 
- Up to 100 free nozzles for commercial customers 
- Special vouchers available for site needs as approved by agency 

Customers of participating agencies sign on to the FreeSprinklerNozzles.com website 
and log in using their existing customer information. 

Customers then watch a series of mandatory videos explaining 1) how the nozzles work 
2) how to identify the appropriate nozzles for their irrigation system and 3) proper nozzle 
installation.   

For customers that agree to program terms, a voucher is forwarded via email. In 
addition, each customer is provided with forms to assist them in sketching the layout of 
their irrigation system and conducting an inventory for nozzle replacements.   

The customer (or their landscaper) then takes the voucher to a participating equipment 
distributor for redemption of the nozzles.    



Page 2 of 2 
 

DWA Involvement 
The Program is offered as a turn-key design.  Western administers all program 
operations including: website development, updates, maintenance, and hosting, 
landscape contractor outreach, and marketing materials development.  Western also 
conducts irrigation equipment distributor recruitment and training.   Western secures 
purchase orders with participating distributors and pays these distributors.  Western 
would invoice DWA and provides regular reporting.   

DWA would need to promote the program to its customers, which could be done 
through: 

- Bill insert 
- DWA NewsStream eBlast 
- Website 
- KESQ segment/YouTube video 
- Social media posts/advertising 
- Penalty letter insert 

Cost & Budget 
The program currently offers five models of high efficiency nozzles at the below listed 
price: 

Toro Precision Series Spray Nozzle: $3.60 (residential or commercial) 

Toro Precision Series Rotating Nozzle: $5.00 (commercial only) 

Hunter MP Rotator Nozzle: $5.00 (commercial only) 

Rain Bird Rotating Nozzle: $4.00 (commercial only) 

Rain Bird Rotating Variable Arc Nozzle: $5.00 (commercial only) 

These nozzles typically retail for $4 - $10.  Price includes full turn-key program 
implementation.  

Western requires a $20,000 budget level for this program for the next 12 months. Staff 
budgeted sufficient funds in the 2016-17 budget under “Other Conservation Programs”, 
but the FreeSprinklerNozzles.com costs could be covered by a contribution from CPV 
Sentinel and/or penalty fees collected to date. 

Staff recommendation 
Staff recommends that the Board of Directors authorize the General Manager to enter 
into a Memorandum of Understanding with Western for the next twelve months with a 
maximum budget of $20,000. This would allow DWA to put about 5,000 nozzles in place 
for a savings of about 7 million gallons or 21.5 AF per year.  



 

Memorandum of Understanding 
Between the Western Municipal Water District (“WESTERN”), 

Desert Water Agency (“PROGRAM PARTICIPANT”) 

Participation in Free Sprinkler Nozzles Program  
and   

Reimbursement Payments Associated Therewith 

Background: 

1. WESTERN and PROGRAM PARTICIPANT have previously entered into, or 
herby enter into, a memorandum of understanding in order to partner for the 
sole purpose of extending Western’s FreeSprinklerNozzles.com Program to the 
residential, commercial and irrigation customers within the PROGRAM 
PARTICIPANT service area.  In the event the parties have previously entered 
into such a memorandum of understanding, then this Amended and Restated 
Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”) hereby supersedes, replaces, and 
otherwise controls over the memorandum of understanding which was in place 
prior to the effective date of this MOU.  In the event the parties have not 
previously entered into a memorandum of understanding, then this MOU shall 
be deemed to be the contractual arrangement between the parties on the 
matters addressed herein.   

2. In the event this MOU is replacing a memorandum of understanding that is 
already in effect, the purpose of this MOU is to provide for the distribution of 
additional types and models of water-efficient sprinkler nozzles from multiple 
manufacturers with a variety of unit costs.  These additional types of nozzles 
are rotating nozzles and will be available to commercial/irrigation customers 
only (“Commercial/Irrigation Nozzles”).  These Commercial/Irrigation Nozzles 
were not part of the FreeSprinklerNozzles.com Program at the time of some of 
the original memoranda of understanding.  The fixed spray nozzles will continue 
to be available for residential and commercial/irrigation customers.  

3. The FreeSprinklerNozzles.com Program budget within the PROGRAM 
PARTICIPANT service area, funded by the PROGRAM PARTICIPANT budget, 
will seek to incentivize the installation of water-efficient sprinkler nozzles for 
residential customers and Commercial/Irrigation customers (collectively referred 
to as “Nozzles”) during the program offering period of February 1, 2017 to 
January 31, 2018, within the PROGRAM PARTICIPANT service area, up to a 
maximum budget of $20,000.     



 

4. WESTERN and PROGRAM PARTICIPANT have agreed to work together and 
coordinate the implementation of the FreeSprinklerNozzles.com Program as set 
forth in this MOU and as further described at the FreeSprinklerNozzles.com 
website. 

5. Nothing in this MOU shall be deemed to be the provision of any service or other 
activity outside of each party’s respective service area, and to the extent the 
performance of any aspect of this MOU can be considered a “service,” 
California Government Code Section 54981 permits a local agency to contract 
with another local agency for performance by the latter of municipal services or 
functions within the territory of the former. The purpose of this MOU is to 
facilitate implementation of the FreeSprinklerNozzles.com Program in order to 
further each party’s conservation goals.  In addition, WESTERN desires to enter 
into this MOU in order to obtain funding and other operational support toward 
the cost and requirements for implementation of the FreeSprinklerNozzles.com 
Program.  

Understandings and Agreements: 

1. WESTERN has developed and currently administers a customer self-service 
website, FreeSprinklerNozzles.com, for the dissemination of product vouchers 
within its service area. Under the FreeSprinklerNozzles.com Program, the 
Commercial/Irrigation customer is responsible for selecting the Nozzle type and 
manufacturer prior to being eligible to receive a voucher. Residential customers 
are offered a voucher for fixed spray Nozzles only. Neither WESTERN nor 
PROGRAM PARTICIPANT shall be responsible for making, or assisting in 
making, the selection of a Nozzle and shall not be liable in connection with the 
results, or lack thereof, from the use of such Nozzles.   

2. WESTERN has agreed to extend the use of the FreeSprinklerNozzles.com 
website to the PROGRAM PARTICIPANT service area. 

3. Customers, within the PROGRAM PARTICIPANT service area, will, when 
participating on the FreeSprinklerNozzles.com website, be issued a voucher that 
is redeemable at participating landscape irrigation equipment suppliers near or 
within PROGRAM PARTICIPANT service area. 

4. For every water-efficient sprinkler Nozzle for which a voucher is redeemed at a 
local irrigation store within the PROGRAM PARTICIPANT service area, 
WESTERN will invoice PROGRAM PARTICIPANT, and PROGRAM 
PARTICIPANT shall pay the amounts shown below or any other amounts which 
may be in effect as of the date of the applicable invoice as determined by 
WESTERN under the FreeSprinklerNozzles.com Program, provided, however that 
the maximum amount payable by PROGRAM PARTICIPANT pursuant to this 



 

MOU shall not exceed the Maximum Amount set forth in paragraph 7 of this 
Agreement.  The Maximum Amount shall apply to all Nozzles regardless of 
whether Nozzles are for residential, commercial or  irrigation customers.  
PROGRAM PARTICIPANT shall not be permitted to allocate a certain portion of 
the Maximum Amount for certain types of customers, Nozzles or manufacturers.   

Unless different amounts are in effect as of the date of the applicable invoice, as 
determined by WESTERN, the per unit price for each Nozzle shall be as follows: 

Toro Precision Series Spray Nozzle: $3.60 
Toro Precision Series Rotating Nozzle: $5.00 
Hunter MP Rotator Nozzle: $5.00 
Rain Bird Rotating Nozzle: $4.00 
Rain Bird Rotating Variable Arc Nozzle: $5.00 
 

_______ By initializing this paragraph, PROGRAM PARTICIPANT is hereby 
opting to allow and fund both the fixed spray and rotating Commercial/Irrigation 
Nozzles in connection with requests from Commercial/Irrigation customers.  The 
refusal or failure to initial this paragraph shall indicate that PROGRAM 
PARTICIPANT will only allow and fund fixed spray Commercial/Irrigation Nozzles 
in connection with requests from Commercial/Irrigation customers.     

5. Additionally, WESTERN will, on a monthly or quarterly basis, as determined by 
WESTERN, prepare a fully documented invoice, for the amounts due as set forth 
above stating the amount due for the number of water-efficient sprinkler Nozzles 
processed during the previous period, that were distributed by way of the voucher 
program within the PROGRAM PARTICIPANT service area. Each invoice shall be 
accompanied by back up documentation that shall include at least the following: 
participant account number, participant address and number of Nozzles distributed 
to each individual participant. PROGRAM PARTICIPANT shall pay each invoice 
within thirty (30) days from the date of PROGRAM PARTICIPANT’s receipt of the 
applicable invoice.    

6. PROGRAM PARTICIPANT, if it elects to do so, will have the responsibility to audit 
and verify the installation of the water-efficient sprinkler Nozzles distributed by the 
FreeSprinklerNozzles.com Program, within its respective service area, including 
for PROGRAM PARTICIPANT member agencies (local urban water suppliers), if 
applicable.  PROGRAM PARTICIPANT shall be solely responsible, at its sole cost 
and expense, to enter into the applicable arrangements, if applicable, and take 
any action which may be required, in order to enforce the requirements of its 
member agencies as set forth herein.   



 

7. PROGRAM PARTICIPANT has an approved budget, not-to-exceed $20,000           
to support the implementation of the FreeSprinklerNozzles.com Program within 
the PROGRAM PARTICIPANT service area (“Maximum Amount”).   
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this MOU, PROGRAM PARTICIPANT 
shall have no obligation to spend funds in excess of the Maximum Amount without 
further written authorization in the form of a written amendment to this MOU, 
signed by each party’s authorized signatory. 

8. PROGRAM PARTICIPANT will coordinate and participate in the overall 
administrative oversight of, and foster the multiple-agency participation in, the 
FreeSprinklerNozzles.com Program within the PROGRAM PARTICIPANT service 
area as applicable. Specifically, PROGRAM PARTICIPANT will be responsible for 
providing the customer information as requested. 

9. The term of this MOU shall extend from the date of full execution until January 31, 
2018.  This Agreement shall remain in effect during the term unless earlier 
terminated under the following procedures:     

 (a)  If either party to this MOU believes that the other party has failed to perform 
any obligation of that party in accordance with the terms of this MOU (“Default”), 
the party alleging the Default shall provide written notice (“Default Notice”) to 
the other party, setting forth the nature of the alleged Default.  Unless otherwise 
provided by a specific term of this MOU, the party claimed to be in Default shall 
have (i) with respect to a Default involving the payment of money, ten (10) days 
after its receipt of the Default Notice to completely cure such Default, and (ii) 
with respect to any other type of Default, thirty (30) days from the receipt of the 
Default Notice to completely cure such Default or, if such Default cannot 
reasonably be cured within such thirty (30) day period, to commence the cure of 
such Default within the thirty (30) day period and diligently prosecute the cure to 
completion thereafter.  If the party claimed to be in Default does not cure such 
Default within the time periods and procedures as set forth herein, the party 
alleging Default may then pursue the applicable legal and equitable remedies.     

 (b)  In the event either party determines it is not feasible or permissible to 
continue to perform this MOU due to issues regarding whether a service or 
activity is being performed outside of a party’s service area, either party may 
terminate this agreement upon ten (10) days prior written notice to the other 
party.  In the event of any such termination, the parties will remain obligated to 
perform and pay for any obligation incurred prior to the effective date of said 
termination unless otherwise prohibited by law or regulation.    

 (c) Either party may terminate this MOU for convenience at any time upon 
thirty (30) days written notice.  In the event of any such termination, the parties 



 

will remain obligated to perform and pay for any obligation incurred prior to the 
effective date of said termination unless otherwise prohibited by law or 
regulation. 

 (d) Upon termination of the Agreement, WESTERN shall immediately stop 
using any data (including the Confidential Data) provided by PROGRAM 
PARTICIPANT to WESTERN and shall, as directed by PROGRAM 
PARTICIPANT, return or destroy the Confidential Data and certified the 
destruction of the same.   

 (e) Surviving Obligations.  Obligations with respect to confidentiality, use, 
and destruction of the Confidential Data, indemnification, and payment shall 
survive the termination of this Agreement. 

10. Confidentiality and Usage of Data. 

(a) PROGRAM PARTICIPANT agrees to provide WESTERN with 
PROGRAM PARTICIPANT customer names, addresses and account numbers 
(“Confidential Data”) solely for the purpose of allowing PROGRAM 
PARTICIPANT customers to participate in the FreeSprinklerNozzles.com 
Program (the “Authorized Use”).  The Confidential Data will remain the property 
of PROGRAM PARTICIPANT and its customers.  WESTERN shall use the 
Confidential Data solely for the Authorized Use.  WESTERN shall not use the 
Confidential Data for commercial purposes or for any other use other than the 
Authorized Use.   

(b)  The Confidential Data or any confidential information disclosed by the 
disclosing party to the receiving party shall be treated as confidential and 
maintained in confidence by the receiving party. The receiving party shall not 
disclose any confidential information of the disclosing party except to its own 
personnel who have a need to know.  Without limiting the foregoing, the 
receiving party shall take at least the same steps and use the same methods to 
prevent the unauthorized use or disclosure of Confidential Data of the 
disclosing party as it takes to protect its own confidential or proprietary 
information.  

(c) Public Records Act.  In the event a public records request is made to either 
party (“Receiving Party”) for information regarding customers or other 
information from the other party (“Subject Party”), the Receiving Party shall 
provide notice to the Subject Party in order to provide the Subject Party with the 
opportunity to pursue the applicable action for withholding any such records 
from disclosure.   



 

(d) Data Security and Distribution.  WESTERN will ensure that any Confidential 
Information included in the Data is stored on computers and storage media 
accessible only by those WESTERN personnel with a need to use those 
portions of the Data, and that only the minimum number of copies reasonably 
necessary to accomplish the Authorized Use will be made.  Confidential Data 
stored in an electronic format will be stored using industry-standard encryption 
and security features. (e) WESTERN shall not, and will inform all users that 
they may not: 

(i) Disclose any portions of the Data that are individually identifiable or that 
otherwise identifies persons, directly or indirectly, except as permitted 
under this MOU; 

(ii) Use the Data to learn the identity of any person or entity included in the 
Data or to contact any such person or entity for any purpose, except as 
permitted under this MOU; 

(iii) Distribute or publish the Data to anyone other than as expressly 
permitted under this MOU; 

11. General Provisions 

 (a)  Indemnification  Each party hereby agrees to defend, indemnify and hold 
free and harmless the other party from and against any and all liability, 
expense, including defense costs and legal fees, and claims for damages of 
any nature whatsoever, including, but not limited to, breaches of confidentiality 
or misuse of any data provided by PROGRAM PARTICIPANT or obtained by 
WESTERN in connection with this MOU; bodily injury, personal injury, death or 
property damage, arising from or connected with Indemnitor’s activities under 
this MOU, including any Worker’s Compensation suits, liability, or expense, 
arising from or connected with services performed on behalf of Indemnitor by 
any person pursuant to this MOU, whether such claims, damages, liabilities, 
costs and/or judgments are based upon alleged negligence, a dangerous 
condition of public property, or any other theory of liability.  Indemnitor’s duty to 
indemnify the Indemnitee shall survive the expiration or other termination of this 
MOU as to any injuries, occurrences or claims occurring or alleged to have 
occurred prior to its expiration or termination. 

 (b)  Relationship of the Parties  Nothing contained in this MOU shall be deemed 
or construed by the parties or by any third person to create the relationship of 
principal and agent, or partnership or joint venture, or any association between 
the parties, and none of the provisions contained in this MOU or any act of the 
parties shall be deemed to create any relationship other than as specified 



 

herein, nor shall this MOU be construed, except as expressly provided herein, 
to authorize any of the parties to act as the agent for the other. 

  (c) Incorporation of Recitals The Recitals set forth above are incorporated 
herein and made an operative part of this MOU.  

(d) Complete Agreement  This MOU constitutes the entire agreement between 
the parties, both written and oral, with respect to the subject matter hereof.  Any 
prior agreements respecting the subject matter hereof, written or oral, express 
or implied, between the Parties, are hereby canceled.   

DESERT WATER AGENCY      WESTERN MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 

______________________ _________    ________________________ __________ 
Mark Krause                         (Date)  John V. Rossi                          (Date) 
General Manager-Chief Engineer              General Manager 
 
 



6-E 
 

 
 

STAFF REPORT  
TO 

DESERT WATER AGENCY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
FEBRUARY 7, 2017 

 
 
RE: REQUEST AUTHORIZATION TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT 

WITH METROPOLITAN WATER DISTRICT & COACHELLA 
VALLEY WATER DISTRICT FOR ARTICLE 21 WATER 

 
On January 25, 2017, the Agency received a notice from the Department of Water 
Resources (DWR) regarding the 2017 Article 21 Water Program.  The notice advised 
that DWR was offering interested Contractors who signed the Monterey Agreement the 
opportunity to participate in the purchase of Article 21 water which may become 
available later in 2017.  Staff executed and returned the notice which indicated the 
Agency’s acceptance of the criteria, procedures, and charges established for this 
program (see attached). 
 
It is anticipated that DWR will be making Article 21 water available by February 10, 
2017.  Metropolitan Water District of Southern California (MWD) cannot take immediate 
delivery of Article 21 water but anticipates that it will be able to do so in Mid-March 2017 
if Article 21 water is still available.  MWD has indicated agreement to deliver Article 21 
water to the Agency and CVWD’s under certain conditions.  The primary condition is 
that the delivery of Article 21 water to DWA/CVWD must not interfere with MWD’s 
operations or delivery of Table A to its member agencies.  The Article 21 delivery to 
DWA will most likely be between 0-2,500 acre-feet. The cost of the water will include 
only transportation costs ($320/a.f.).  This water will cost approximately 50% of a Table 
A delivery.  A letter agreement defining the terms of delivery between the agencies is 
being prepared by MWD for execution.  It is anticipated that the letter will be ready 
within a week.  MWD may be able to take delivery of Article 21 water sooner than Mid-
March, in which case the letter will need to be executed before our next regularly 
scheduled Board meeting. 
 
Staff requests the Board’s authorization to participate in the 2017 Article 21 Water 
Program.  Staff also requests authorization for the General Manager to execute a letter 
Agreement with MWD for the exchange delivery of 2017 Article 21 Water. 
 











7-B 

01358.00002\29515309.1  

BEST  BEST  &  KRIEGER 
ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

January 19, 2017 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: GENERAL MANAGER AND BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF DESERT WATER AGENCY 

FROM: BEST BEST & KRIEGER LLP 

RE: JANUARY 19, 2017 MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
STATE WATER CONTRACTORS, INC. 

The January 19, 2017 meeting of the Board of Directors of the State Water 

Contractors, Inc., was conducted at the Tsakopoulos Library Galleria in downtown Sacramento.  

1. Board Action Items. 

The Board took action to approve an increase of $124,000 for consulting work 

already underway on the Longfin Smelt.  There is a documented correlation between outflows 

from the Delta and Longfin Smelt populations.  However, there is insufficient information to 

explain why that correlation exists.  Some believe that the Longfin Smelt spawn in tributaries to 

the Delta, and that population increases during periods of high flow really result from improved 

habitat conditions in those in tributaries, coinciding with improved precipitation.  Thus, the 

release water from the reservoirs to increase outflows from the Delta during dry conditions may 

not produce a corresponding benefit to Longfin Smelt populations.  This is a year in which 

monitoring of Longfin Smelt spawning in the tributary marshes would produce valuable 

information.  The Board authorized the additional expenditure of $124,000 to conduct additional 

survey work this year. 

2. Water Supply Report. 

DWR Deputy Director Mark Anderson was present for a DWA management 

report .  He began by commenting on water supply conditions.  As of the date of the meeting, the 

allocation for 2017 already had been increased to 60% for Contractors south of the Delta, and 

85% for Contractors north of the Delta.  Anderson reported that more storms were anticipated, 

and that the allocations could go up further.  DWR has been operating to flood control 



 

 
- 2 - 

01358.00002\29515309.1  

BEST  BEST  &  KRIEGER 
ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

requirements at Oroville, and therefore has been releasing water from Oroville at a rate equal to 

the inflow, to keep from encroaching on flood control space.  These releases from Oroville have 

produced a lot of hydro power generation at the Hyatt hydro facility.  Anderson stated that DWR 

was on its way to filling the San Luis Reservoir as well.  The Bureau of Reclamation has more of 

its storage space available, although it is anticipated that the Bureau’s storage space will fill as 

well.  Anderson stated that DWR would borrow that available storage space until the Bureau 

needs it for its own storage purposes. 

Mark Anderson also reported that DWR is conducting budget conferences with a 

goal of having a fairly “flat” statement of charges for 2017.  In other words, DWR is doing what 

it can to avoid spikes in the statement of charges to Contractors. 

3. Water Supply Report. 

John Leahigh of DWR was present to further report on SWP water operations.  

Needless to say, water supply conditions are excellent.  January, 2017 has been great, with nearly 

20 inches of precipitation having fallen in the Feather River watershed as of the date of the 

meeting, which was well above 200 percent of average.  Leahigh stated that another six inches of 

rain were expected by the end of the week, and that the new storm was expected to also bring a 

lot of snow.  He stated that all three major reservoirs were in flood control operations, including 

Shasta, Oroville and Folsom.  As of the date of the meeting, total pumping from the Delta was at 

the rate of 14,000 cubic feet per second, with a little more than 10,000 cfs being pumped by 

DWR at the Clifton Court Forebay.  He said that DWR would be filling the San Luis Reservoir 

rapidly.  Contractor requests for deliveries had increased, as some Contractors were attempting 

to remove their carry over water from the San Luis Reservoir before it would spill.  Leahigh 

anticipated that San Luis would begin to spill in early February.  As of the end December, carry 

over water in the reservoir was at about 400,000 acre feet.  Notwithstanding the abundant water 

supply, Leahigh stated that it would be difficult for DWR to get to a 100% allocation this year, 

due to export constraints imposed by the biological opinions, although he said that DWR could 

not rule out the possibility altogether.  He said that a 100% allocation would depend largely on 

high flows in the San Joaquin River. 

 



 

 
- 3 - 

01358.00002\29515309.1  

BEST  BEST  &  KRIEGER 
ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

 

4. General Manager’s Report. 

SWC’s Manager, Terry Erlewine, stated that the State Water Project Advisory 

Committee had met with newly appointed DWR Director Bill Croyle.  He stated that revisions 

are being made in the biological opinion for OCAP, and for the Longfin Smelt.  The Contractors 

are hopeful that the fish agencies will allow input from the Contractors on all aspects of the 

biological opinions, and not just on the early drafts. 

5. Revisions to SWC Bylaws. 

Erlewine also provided a report on proposed revisions to the SWC corporate 

bylaws.  Revisions to the bylaws will require approval by two-thirds of the member Contractors.  

Most of the proposed revisions are non-substantive.  One of the more substantive revisions will 

include a change in the methodology for allocating the cost of the FERC re-licensing.  Currently, 

FERC costs are allocated among Contractors with one-half to the Energy Fund (calculated 

according to deliveries) and one-half to the Dues Fund (calculated according to Table A 

Amounts).  This allocation had been approved in order to more fairly allocate the cost of 

relicensing the Hyatt power facility, and endeavor now completed.  Other proposed revisions to 

the bylaws will provide that Roberts Rules of Order govern Board proceedings, and that it takes 

ten percent of the members, rather than five percent, to call a special meeting of the members.  

6. Report on Energy Objectives 

SWC’s Assistant General Manager Tim Haynes provided a report on progress in 

addressing energy objectives for the year.  A copy of his PowerPoint presentation is enclosed 

with this memo.  Tim reported on California’s effort to “decarbonize” the California economy.  

He stated that the Air Resources Board has asked why the State Water Project is not “greener”.  

However, the State Water Project is already one of the “greenest” electric utilities in the State.  

As the slides reveal, transmission costs have been increasing significantly, having gone up five 

hundred percent since 2001.  Some of these increased costs result from increased capital costs in 

constructing transmission lines to locations where green energy is generated.  Tim was happy to 

report that the National Marine Fisheries Service had issued its biological opinion for the 



 

 
- 4 - 

01358.00002\29515309.1  

BEST  BEST  &  KRIEGER 
ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

relicensing of the power facility at Oroville, and that the final biological opinion was better than 

an earlier draft.  The biological opinion was the last major hurdle to getting a new license for that 

facility.  Meanwhile, a study plan has been submitted for the relicensing of SWP facilities south 

of the Delta.  

MICHAEL T. RIDDELL 



Data compiled on:
1/18/2017

State Water Contractors Board 
Meeting

January 19, 2017

New Melones Storage

17,504 cfs

0.88 MAF

4,100 cfs

0.48 MAF
Nimbus
Release

30,000 cfs
Freeport

Trinity Storage

30,000 cfs

Oroville Storage
2.81 MAF

Folsom Storage

Shasta Storage
3.64 MAF

Oroville
 Releases
20,000 cfs

Keswick Release

1.39 MAF

76,335 cfs
Clifton Court   10,100 cfs

San Luis:

North Bay Aqueduct

Vernalis   
Jones PP   

153,600 cfs

0.91 MAF
0.57 MAF

SWP  
CVP  

Southern Reservoirs Storage
0.52 MAF

Total  1.48 MAF

O&M, OSC 

NS a c r a m en t o
R i v e r

Delta

S an Joaq
in

River.

C alif ornia A que du ct

Net Delta Outflow

Silverwood

Perris

Pyramid

Castaic

DMC

Agenda Item 5a











Ending At Midnight - February 2, 2017

Graph Updated 02/03/2017 07:45 AM

LEGEND

Capacity
(TAF)

% of Capacity |% of Historical
Average

Historical

Average

Trinity Lake
60% | 85%

Lake Shasta
77% | 114%

Lake Oroville
79% | 120%

Folsom Lake
42% | 80%

New Melones Lake
43% | 72%

Don Pedro Reservoir
87% | 127%

Lake McClure
72% | 151%

San Luis Reservoir
85% | 107%

Millerton Lake
66% | 102%

Lake Perris
38% | 47%

Castaic Lake
82% | 99%

Pine Flat Reservoir
62% | 130%



1/19/2017

1

Energy 
Objectives

1/ 19/ 2017

T I M H A I NES

Energy Objectives

1/19/2017 2

Objective Description

Energy Reports Develop New Board Report

Strategic Power and Transmission Plan Regionalization (or not) of CAISO

Near-Term Risk Management DWR Energy Hedging Program & Reid 
Gardner Decommissioning

GHG & Renewables Cap-and-Trade and Renewable 
Acquisitions

Defend Against Liabilities and Claims Utility Transmission Cases

FERC Relicensing Oroville and SoCal Facilities

Agenda Item 9



1/19/2017

2

Proposal:  Reporting Approach
Annual Report:  Budget for the Variable Charge
◦ Statement of Charges (SOC) Budget (B1)

◦ Initial Invoice Rate Budget (B2)

Quarterly Reporting: Actual Operations to Budget (B2) including 
Variance Analysis

3

Annual Reporting Calendar Jan Mar April June Sept Dec

SOC Budget (B1)
X

Initial Invoice Rate Budget (B2)

Budget (B2) vs Actual

Variance Analysis, Market Impacts

1st Qtr 
of Year

2nd Qtr 3rd Qtr 4th Qtr

1/19/2017

SWP Variable Budget vs 
Actuals

 -

 500

 1,000

 1,500

 2,000

 2,500

 3,000

 $-

 $50

 $100

 $150

 $200

 $250

 $300

 $350

 $400

 $450

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

(A
F 

in
 T

h
o

u
sa

n
d

s)

($
 in

 M
ill

io
n

s)

Axis Title

CY2016 Cumulative Variable Budget vs Actuals as of 
July 31, 2016

CY2016 Plan Deliveries Cumulative CYTD Actual Deliveries

CY2016 Budget (B2) Cumulative CYTD Actuals

41/19/2017



1/19/2017

3

What Is 100% Carbon Free

Market Purchases
30%

Renewables
5%

Advanced Natural Gas
5%

Hydro Purchase
5%

SWP Hydro, 55%

Market Purchases Renewables Advanced Natural Gas Hydro Purchase SWP Hydro

51/19/2017

2014 2016
SWP Water Delivery (% of SWC Entitlement) 5% 60%
SWP Pump Demand (GWh) 2,800 6,200
SWP and Other Carbon Free Power (GWh) 1,800 3,800
Market Power (GWh) 1,000 2,400

SWP Carbon Content is 
50% of electric utilities, 
but …

High Voltage Transmission 
Cost

1/19/2017

$0.00

$2.00

$4.00

$6.00

$8.00

$10.00

$12.00

$14.00

$/
M

W
h

<$15 million/yr

~ 81 million/yr

> $100 million/yr

6

• CAISO operates the 
Cali transmission 
system

• PG&E, SCE and 
SDG&E continue to 
own transmission

• FERC authorizes 
recovery of costs

• PG&E’s last rate 
case settled Sep 
2016 (11% hike)

• Filed current rate 
proposal in Jul 2016 
(30% more)

500% Increase



1/19/2017

4

1/19/2017 7

CAISO Regionalization

Principals’ 
meetings & 
follow-up

Our “ask” is 
feasible

Changes at 
state, regional 
and federal level

Extensive 
engagement

Relicensing & Reid Gardner

1/19/2017 8

Oroville
◦ NMFS – Issued Biological Opinion in December, 2016

◦ Habitat Expansion Plan – Emphasis of SWC Efforts

SoCal Facilities
◦ Study Plan Submitted

Reid Gardner
◦ Clean Up and Risk Assessment
































































































	020717 Board Agenda
	Item 2A 010617 Special Board Minutes
	MINUTES    2-A
	OF THE SPECIAL MEETING
	Attendance

	Item 2B 011717 Board Minutes
	MINUTES   2-B
	OF THE REGULAR MEETING
	Attendance

	Item 2C 012417 Special Board Minutes
	MINUTES    2-C
	OF THE SPECIAL MEETING
	Attendance

	Item 3 020717 GM Report
	FEBRUARY 7, 2017

	Item 4 020117 Exec Comm
	Item 6A Lahtinen Retirement Staff report
	ADP6B60.tmp
	LEE LAHTINEN


	Item 6B 020717 Penalty hearings staff report
	020717 hearing packet_Redacted.pdf
	020717 Penalty hearing summary.pdf
	2890 N De Anza Rd
	Zentner penalty letter
	Zentner hearing request


	Item 6C Reso 1149  - Support Nomin Kathleen Tiegs ACWAJPIA staff report
	Item 6D MOU FreeSprinklerNozzles com Staff Report
	Item 6E SWP 2017 Article 21 Water
	FEBRUARY 7, 2017
	RE: REQUEST AUTHORIZATION TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH METROPOLITAN WATER DISTRICT & COACHELLA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT FOR ARTICLE 21 WATER


	Item 7B SWC_ MEMO TO BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF JANUARY 19 2017 BOARD MEETING (DESERT)-c2
	MEMORANDUM
	1. Board Action Items.
	2. Water Supply Report.
	ATTACH SWC  MEMO TO BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF JANUARY 19 2017 BOARD MEETING (DESERT)-c1.pdf
	#5a BoardPackage-011917.pdf
	CvrSht
	PLOT_ESI
	PLOT_FSI
	PLOT_TSI
	PLOT_SWC



	Item 8A 01 07 17 PI Media January
	Item 8B 01 17 17 PI Activities



